
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, January 8, 2013                                                                           City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
**Note** A Special Meeting is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m.  

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
• 2012 Employee Pride Award Announcements (Beaufrere) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  December 11, 2012 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Consultant Agreement for Hazard Mitigation Plan (Akramoff) 
C-4. Appointments of 2013 Primary and Alternate Representatives to the following:  (Council) 
 -  South County Area Transportation Board (SCATBd) 
 -  Sound Cities Association’s Public Issues Committee (PIC) 
 -  Metropolitan Solid Waste Advisory Committee (MSWAC) 
 -  Water Resource Inventory Area 9 Forum (WRIA 9) 
 -  Kent Fire Department Regional Fire Authority (RFA) 
 -  Southeast Area Transportation Solutions (SEATS) 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Public Testimony and Consider Ordinance Extending a Medical Marijuana 

Moratorium. (Hart) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Approve Contracts with Stalzer & Associates and Oakpointe Holdings, LLC for Northern 

Gateway Phase II (Hart) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
• Potential Litigation. (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i))  

   
ADJOURN  
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-
480-2400.  
 
 



 

Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  January 8, 2013   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  DECEMBER 11, 2012 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 

MEETING MINUTES. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes  
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the December 11, 2012 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

 
 
 

1 of 73



Unapproved Draft – December 11, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  January 8, 2013 
 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, December 11, 2012 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
December 11, 2012, at 7:03 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ABSENT: 
Marlla Mhoon and Jim Scott. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Wagner seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Mhoon who was recovering from an injury and Councilmember 
Scott who was ill.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Richard Hart, Community 
Development Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; 
Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara 
Springer, City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive  Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded 
to approve the Agenda.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  November 27, 2012 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 
C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #28580—28637 and Voided Voucher #28638, in the Amount of 

$601,197.93, Dated November 26, 2012; Vouchers #28640-28640 and Voided Voucher 
#28639, in the Amount of $38,492.72, Dated December 5, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1000893792-1000893806 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $138,608.41, Dated December 7, 2012. 

2 of 73



Unapproved Draft – December 11, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  January 8, 2013 
 
 

 2 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 12-11 

 A 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, APPROVING 
THE FINAL PLAT OF WOODBRIDGE LU11-0012/2106 FOR 
RECORDING.  
 

C-3. Accept Woodbridge Final Plat. 
 

C-4. Execute an Agreement for Recycling Events for 2013. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 18-12  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, AMENDING THE 2012 
BUDGET BY AMENDING SECTION 2 AND 5 OF 
ORDINANCE NO. 20-11 
 

C-5. Pass Ordinance No. 18-12 Adopting a 2012 Budget Amendment. 
 

C-6. Execute Amendment to Agreement for Landscaping Services. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS: 
1.  Consider 2013 Legislative Agenda. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson introduced this item, and Covington lobbyist Briahna Taylor 
gave the presentation. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lucavish moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
adopt the 2013 Legislative Agenda.   
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
amend the motion to strike a portion of the sentence in the last bullet point, “excluding 
AWC’s position on LEOFF 2 benefit enhancements”.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
2.  Approve Interlocal Agreement with Kent Regional Fire Authority for Fire Marshal, 
International Fire Code (IFC), and Fire Investigative Services. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 

3 of 73



Unapproved Draft – December 11, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  January 8, 2013 
 
 

 3 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
authorize the City Manager to enter into an Interlocal Agreement between the City of 
Covington and the Kent Regional Fire Authority relating to fire prevention services.  Vote:  
5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
3.  Consider Right of First Offer to Purchase Covington Elementary School. 
 
City Attorney Sara Springer gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Ms. Springer provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded to 
authorize the City Manager to execute the Right of First Offer Agreement with the Kent 
School District:  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  Consider Ordinance Adopting the CY2013 Operating and Capital Budget. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 19-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING THE CY2013 
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET AND 
IMPLEMENTING THE CY2013 COST OF LIVING 
ADJUSTMENT FOR CITY EMPLOYEES. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
pass Ordinance No. 19-12 adopting the CY2013 Operating and Capital Budget.  Vote:  5-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to cancel the December 26, 2012 Council 
meeting. 
 
Finance Director Rob Hendrickson requested Council approval to allow the Budget Priorities 
Advisory Committee to meet once or twice in January to wrap up its final report to Council as 
BPAC’s charter requires the group to seek council approval to meet beyond the end of the year. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to allow BPAC to meet in January with the 
goal to have BPAC provide a presentation at the second Council meeting in January and 
then have a discussion at the Council Summit. 
 
 

4 of 73



Unapproved Draft – December 11, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  January 8, 2013 
 
 

 4 

City Manager Derek Matheson informed Council that Oakpointe Holdings had requested to work 
with staff to create a state Transportation Budget request regarding the new road that will 
connect Highway 18 to 204th through the gravel pit.  Mr. Matheson indicated the road is critical 
not only to development of the gravel pit but also to traffic on 272nd and asked if Council is 
comfortable with this arrangement. 
 
Mr. Matheson also informed Council that Covington court cases are currently held in the King 
County District Court Renton courthouse which the County plans to close in mid 2013.  Mr. 
Matheson further explained that the County has now asked for Covington’s approval to hold 
Covington court cases at the Auburn Courthouse which has been found agreeable to the 
Covington police, prosecutor, and public defender. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to allow staff to work with Oakpointe 
Holdings on this item and once drafted out to bring it back to Council for a decision on 
where it would fit among the other legislative funding requests. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to agree to the change in courthouses to the 
Auburn location to hear Covington cases. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

5 of 73



 

Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  January 8, 2013 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #28641—28710, in the Amount of $103,329.93, Dated 
December 11, 2012; Vouchers #28711-28765, in the Amount of $1,165,057.76, Dated 
December 26, 2012; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000929794-1000929807 and Paylocity 
Payroll Checks #1000929815-1000929816 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $144,162.88, Dated December 21, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000959046-1000959058 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000959127-1000959127 Inclusive, 
Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $137,880.02, Dated January 4, 2013. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment: Vouchers #28641—28710, in the Amount 
of $103,329.93, Dated December 11, 2012; Vouchers #28711-28765, in the 
Amount of $1,165,057.76, Dated December 26, 2012; Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1000929794-1000929807 and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000929815-1000929816 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $144,162.88, Dated December 21, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1000959046-1000959058 and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000959127-1000959127 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $137,880.02, Dated January 4, 2013. 
 
 
 

6 of 73



7 of 73



8 of 73



9 of 73



10 of 73



11 of 73



12 of 73



13 of 73



14 of 73



15 of 73



16 of 73



17 of 73



18 of 73



19 of 73



20 of 73



21 of 73



22 of 73



23 of 73



24 of 73



25 of 73



26 of 73



27 of 73



28 of 73



29 of 73



30 of 73



31 of 73



 Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  January 8, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONSULTANT 

SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH TETRA TECH, INC. TO DEVELOP A 
HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Architecture/Engineering Services Agreement with Tetra Tech, Inc. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor/Public Works 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In October 2012 the Public Works Department received a grant from the Washington State 
Military Department for a Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) to prepare a Hazard 
Mitigation Plan. 
 
The Hazard Mitigation Grant Program provides grant funds to eligible applicants for developing 
or updating hazard mitigation plans or mitigation projects that reduce casualties and damage to 
structures in future disasters.  A FEMA approved natural hazards mitigation plan is required in 
order for an applicant to receive a grant for a mitigation project funded by the five mitigation 
programs. 
 
In November the Public Works Department sent out a request for proposal to seven qualified 
consultants.  We received four proposals.  Three staff members reviewed all four proposals and 
all three reviewers chose Tetra Tech, Inc. as the most qualified consultant to complete the hazard 
mitigation planning process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not to enter into a Consultant Services Agreement with Tetra Tech, Inc. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The expenditures will be paid out of the General Fund (Central Services – Emergency 
Management) – Professional Services line item. 
 
The total grant amount is $49,625.  All eligible costs will be reimbursed by FEMA at 75% 
($37,219), by State at 12.5% ($6,203) and by City 12.5% ($6,203).  The City’s portion includes 
“in-kind” contributions such as steering committee, planning team and staff time. 
 
 
 
 
 

32 of 73



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute a Consultant Services 
Agreement with Tetra Tech, Inc. to develop a Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

33 of 73



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 1 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
AGREEMENT  

ARCHITECTURE/ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES  is entered into this ___ day of January, 2013, by and between the 
City of Covington (“City”), a Washington municipal corporation, and Tetra Tech, Inc., an architectural/ 
engineering services consultant (“Consultant”).  
 

RECITALS 
 
 A. The City seeks the services of an architectural/engineering consultant to perform design services 
on behalf of the citizens of Covington; and 
 
 B. The Consultant has the qualifications and experience necessary to provide said services; and 
 
 C. The City has selected the Consultant to perform said services; and 
 
 D. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms and conditions under which the Consultant 
will perform said services. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set forth herein, the City 
and the Consultant do hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Engagement.  The City, acting pursuant to its vested authority, does hereby engage the Consultant and the  
Consultant does hereby agree to perform on behalf of the City the services more particularly described herein.   
 
2. Scope of Services.  Upon written authorization from the City to proceed, the Consultant shall perform the  
services described in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (“Services”), in a 
manner consistent with the accepted practices for similar services, performed to the City’s satisfaction, within the 
time period prescribed by the City and pursuant to the direction of the City Manager or his or her designee.  In 
performing the Services, the Consultant shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 
including, without limitation, all City codes, ordinances, resolutions, standards, and policies, as now existing or 
hereafter adopted or amended, that may be applicable to its performance.  
 
3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period commencing upon  
execution and ending upon the completion of the Services, but in any event no later than December 31, 2014 
(“Term”), unless earlier terminated under the provisions of this Agreement. Time is of the essence in each and every 
term of this Agreement.  
 
4. Compensation and Method of Payment.   

 
4.1. Compensation.  In consideration of the Consultant performing the Services, the City agrees to 

pay the Consultant as follows:  An amount not to exceed $49,625. 
 

4.2. Method of Payment.  Payment by the City for the Services will only be made after the Services  
have been satisfactorily performed, a voucher or invoice is submitted in a form acceptable to the City, and the same 
is approved by the appropriate City representative.  Payment shall be made no later than ten (10) days after city 
council approval of the invoiced amount.   
 

4.3. First Invoice.  Prior to or along with the first invoice submitted, the Consultant shall return to the 
City a completed “Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification,” also known as IRS form W-9. 
 

4.4. Consultant Responsible for Taxes.  The Consultant shall be solely responsible for the payment 
of any taxes imposed by any lawful jurisdiction as a result of the performance and payment of this Agreement. 
 
5. Books and Records.  The Consultant agrees to maintain books, records, and documents that sufficiently 
and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the performance of the Services and maintain such 

ATTACHMENT 1

34 of 73



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 2 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

accounting procedures and practices as may be deemed necessary by the City to assure proper accounting of all 
funds paid pursuant to this Agreement.  These records shall be subject, at all reasonable times, to inspection, review 
or audit by the City, its authorized representative, the State Auditor, or other governmental officials authorized by 
law to monitor this Agreement. 
 
6. Warranty.   The Consultant warrants that it has the requisite training, skill, and experience necessary to 
provide the Services and is appropriately accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental 
entities, including but not limited to being registered to do business in the City of Covington by obtaining a City of 
Covington business license.   The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical adequacy 
and accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of all plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports, and other 
services prepared or performed pursuant to this Agreement.  The Consultant shall perform its work in accordance 
with the requirements of this Agreement and pursuant to the standards of professional care, skill, diligence, and 
competence as are normally exercised by other members and/or firms of the profession in good standing working 
under the same or similar conditions and circumstances and in similar communities as the services provided by the 
Consultant under this Agreement.  The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional standards, performance, 
and actions of all persons and firms performing work pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant.  The 
City shall also have the right to deduct from payments to the Consultant any costs or damages incurred by the City, 
or which may be incurred by the City, as a result of the Consultant’s failure to comply with the requirements of this 
Agreement or failure to meet the professional standard of care and skill, or both. The City’s approval of plans, 
drawings, designs, specifications, reports, and other products of the professional services rendered hereunder shall 
not in any way relieve the Consultant of responsibility for the technical adequacy or accuracy thereof.  Neither the 
City’s review, approval, acceptance of, and/or payment for any services shall be construed to operate as a waiver of 
any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this Agreement.   
 
7. Ownership and Use of Documents.  Any and all original records, reports, designs, files, documents, 
drawings, specifications, data or information, regardless of form or format, and all other materials prepared or 
produced by the Consultant in connection with the Services shall be the property of the City whether the project for 
which they were created is executed or not. At the termination or cancellation of this Agreement, any and all such 
records or information remaining in the possession of the Consultant shall be delivered to the City.  No confidential 
information obtained or created by the Consultant shall be disclosed to any person or party other than the City 
without the City’s prior written consent. 
 
8. Independent Contractor.  It is the intention and understanding of the City and the Consultant that the 
Consultant shall be an independent contractor and that the City shall be neither liable nor obligated to pay the 
Consultant sick leave, vacation pay, or any other benefit of employment.  The Consultant shall pay all income and 
other taxes due.  Industrial or any other insurance that is purchased for the benefit of the City, regardless of whether 
such may provide a secondary or incidental benefit to the Consultant, shall not be deemed to convert this Agreement 
to an employment contract.  The Consultant shall be solely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, 
employees, sub-consultants, or representatives during the performance of this Agreement.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be considered to create the relation of employer and employee or principal and agent between the 
parties hereto.  The Consultant shall have the sole judgment of the means, mode, or manner of the actual 
performance of this Agreement.  The Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for 
carrying out and accomplishing this Agreement. 
 
9. Indemnification.  The consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or suits, including attorney 
fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors, or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. Should a court of competent 
jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages 
arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence 
of the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant’s liability hereunder, 
including the duty and cost to defend, shall be only to the extent of the Consultant’s negligence. It is further 
specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Consultant’s waiver of 
immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. This waiver has 
been mutually negotiated by the parties. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of 
this Agreement. 
 
 

35 of 73



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 3 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

10. Insurance.  The Consultant shall at a minimum procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement 
the following insurance against claims which may arise from or in connection with the performance of work 
hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees and in such forms and with such carriers who 
have a rating satisfactory to the City [required insurance coverage under this Agreement is indicated with a 
checkmark]: 
 

10.1.    ����   Professional Liability. Professional liability insurance covering any negligent professional  
acts, errors or omissions for which the Consultant is legally responsible and with combined single limits of liability 
not less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit for damages sustained by reason of or in 
the course of operation under this Agreement. 
 

10.2.    ����   Employer Liability. Workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance in amounts  
sufficient pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington.  
 

10.3.    ����    Commercial General Liability. Commercial general liability insurance covering liability  
arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury, and advertising injury and written on 
ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 with combined single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, 
$2,000,000 general aggregate for bodily injury, including personal injury or death, products liability, and property 
damage.  
 

10.4.    ����    Automobile Liability. Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned,  
hired, and leased vehicles and written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage with combined single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per accident 
for bodily injury, including personal injury or death and property damage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed 
to provide contractual liability coverage.   
      

10.5. Additional Requirements. 
 

10.5.1. The City shall be named as additional insured on all above required insurance policies,  
with the exception of professional liability and workers' compensation coverage(s) if the Consultant participates in a 
state-run workers’ comp program.   
 

10.5.2. Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not 
less than A:VII.  
 

10.5.3. All required insurance policies shall contain a clause of endorsement providing that they  
may not be terminated or materially amended during the Term of this Agreement, except after thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to the City.  If the Consultant's insurance policies are "claims made," the Consultant shall be required 
to maintain tail coverage for a minimum period of three (3) years from the date of this Agreement is actually 
terminated or upon project completion and acceptance by the City.   
 

10.5.4. The Consultant shall provide original certificates of insurance and a copy of the  
amendatory endorsement, concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, evidencing such above required 
coverage and, at the City's request, furnish the City with copies of all insurance policies and with evidence of 
payment of premiums or fees of such policies.   
 

10.6. The Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required above shall not be construed to limit the  
liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any 
remedy available at law or in equity.  
 

10.7. The Consultant's failure to maintain such insurance policies as required above shall be grounds for 
the City's immediate termination of this Agreement. The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement with respect to any event occurring prior to such expiration or termination. 
 
11. Termination .   

 
11.1. This Agreement may be terminated at any time, with or without cause, by the City.   

 

36 of 73



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 4 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

11.2. Upon termination, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, worksheets, models, reports, 
or other materials prepared by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted to the City within five 
(5) business days of the date of termination. Consultant shall be entitled to payment for all Services satisfactorily 
performed and reimbursable expenses incurred to the date of termination. 
 

11.3. This provision shall not prevent the City from seeking any legal remedies it may otherwise have  
for the violation, default, or nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement.  The remedies provided in this 
paragraph shall be in addition to any other remedy the City may have at law or in equity. 
 
12. Discrimination .  In all Consultant services, programs, or activities, and all Consultant hiring and  
employment made possible by or resulting from this Agreement, there shall be no discrimination by the Consultant 
or by the Consultant's employees, agents, subcontractors, or representatives against any person because of sex, age 
(except minimum age and retirement provisions), race, color, creed, national origin, marital status, or the presence of 
any disability, including sensory, mental, or physical handicaps, unless based upon a bona fide occupational 
qualification in relationship to hiring and employment.  This requirement shall apply, but not be limited to the 
following:  employment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and 
selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The Consultant shall not violate any of the terms of Chapter 49.60 
RCW, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Americans With Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, or any other applicable federal, state, or local law or regulation regarding non-
discrimination. Any material violation of this provision shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement by the 
City and, in the case of the Consultant's breach, may result in ineligibility for further City agreements.   
 
13. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement  
or subcontract any portion of the Services contemplated hereunder without the prior written consent of the City. 
 
14. Conflict of Interest.  The Consultant represents to the City that it has no conflict of interest in performing  
any of the Services described herein.  It is recognized that the Consultant may or will be performing services during 
the Term for other parties; provided, however, that such performance of other services shall not conflict with or 
interfere with the Consultant’s ability to perform the Services.  In the event that the Consultant is asked to perform 
services for a project with which it may have a conflict, the Consultant shall immediately disclose such potential 
conflict to the City.  The Consultant agrees to resolve any actual conflicts of interest in favor of the City. 
 
15. Confidentiality.   All information regarding the City obtained by the Consultant and designated by the City  
as confidential in the performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential.  Breach of confidentiality by 
the Consultant shall be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement. 

  
16. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire  
agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.  There are no promises, terms, 
conditions, or obligations other than those contained herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous 
communications, negotiations, representations, or agreements, either verbal or written, between the parties hereto 
concerning the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
17. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by writing signed by all parties  
hereto.   
 
18. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of the City to declare any breach or default immediately upon occurrence  
shall not waive such breach or default. Failure of the City to declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of 
the City's right to declare another breach or default. 
 
19. Successors.  Subject to any limiting provisions of this Agreement, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit  
of and be binding upon the parties, their respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, 
successors, and assigns. 
 
20. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be severable. The invalidity  
or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and the 
Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a part of this 
Agreement.  
 

37 of 73



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 5 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

21. Notices.  All notices, payments, and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be  
deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or mailed, by first class or certified mail, with postage 
prepaid to the address included in the signature block below, or to such other person or place as one party shall 
furnish to the other in writing. Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon personal delivery or, if mailed, 
upon the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days after the date of mailing. 
 
22. Governing Law / Venue.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of  
Washington. The venue for any cause of action arising out of this Agreement shall be King County, Washington. 
 
23. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any default under this Agreement, the substantially defaulting party  
agrees to pay the substantially non-defaulting party’s reasonable expenses which the latter incurs by reason thereof, 
including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of such default or 
the determination of the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in legal proceedings, or 
otherwise.  The term “legal proceedings” as used in this paragraph shall include all litigation, arbitration, 
administrative, bankruptcy, and judicial proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 
 
24. Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are intended solely for convenience of reference and shall be  
given no effect in the interpretation of this Agreement.   
 
25. Survival of Representations.  The representations and warranties of the City and the Consultant contained  
hereto shall survive indefinitely. 
 
26. Independent Counsel.  The Consultant acknowledges that the drafter of this Agreement is the City’s legal  
representative to whom the Consultant does not look to for any legal counseling or legal advice with regard to this 
transaction.  The Consultant further acknowledges that it has been advised to consult with independent legal counsel 
and has had an opportunity to do so.  By signing this Agreement, the Consultant acknowledges that it has consulted 
with independent legal counsel of its choice or has knowingly waived the right to do so. There shall be no 
presumption of draftsmanship in favor of or implied against any party hereto. 
 
27. Authority.   Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City and the Consultant represents  
and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of the 
Consultant or the City. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year written above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON      TETRA TECH, INC. 
 
 
________________________________    ___________________________________ 
By: Derek Matheson      By:________________________________ 
Its: City Manager      Its:   _______________________________ 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100     19803 North Creek Parkway 
Covington, WA  98042      Bothell, WA  98011 
        
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
      
 
____________________________________  _________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk     Sara Springer, City Attorney 

38 of 73



 

1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

City of Covington Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Scope of Services 

 
Provide a Hazard Mitigation Plan that will guide the City of Covington in assessing 
hazards and vulnerabilities and mitigating critical facilities.   
 
The city recognizes the potential for disasters to strike critical facilities within the city 
and wishes to have a plan in place before this occurs.  Completion and approval of the 
Hazard Mitigation Plan will also make the city eligible to apply for hazard mitigation 
project grants, further increasing the city's ability to plan for and mitigate the effects of 
hazards. 
 
Identification of hazards and hazard categories will be developed from earlier city work 
and other plans, including the King County plan and the hazard mitigation plans of 
adjacent and overlapping planning and infrastructure agencies, such as water and 
sewer districts known to have developed hazard mitigation plans that include all or a 
portion of the City's planning area.  Other specific hazard categories may include, but 
are not limited to: 

• Flood Hazards – including river and stream flooding and the possibility of a dam 
break related to the City of Seattle's Lake Youngs earthen dam upstream of the 
city, as well as FEMA FIRM maps and local historical data, including known 
flooding and drainage complaints contained within city records and GIS shape 
files and metadata. 

• Wind Hazards – based on local weather information and historical records, 
National Weather Service records, as well as King County's hazard mitigation 
plan and other sources. 

• Fire Hazards – information will be collected from neighboring agencies and the 
King County Hazard Mitigation Plan including information about wildland fires.  
The Fire Department will also provide their own assessment of fire hazards.  The 
City's geographic position is on the edge of the urban-forest interface, with major 
transportation corridors through the City, Williams Pipeline's 24" and 30" high-
pressure natural gas pipelines, and major electrical distribution infrastructure in 
the form of a Bonneville Power Administration substation with seven major BPA 
high-voltage power line corridors all centered on the Covington substation.   

• Geologic Hazards – including landslides and earthquakes, the City has steep 
slopes and related landslide and seismic hazards, particularly along Soos Creek 
and Jenkins Creek, which pose threats to residents and infrastructure, as 
identified by the King County Hazard Mitigation Plan, local utilities and local 
historical knowledge. 

• Drought – information will be based on National Weather Service information and 
local historical information. 

• Hazardous Materials Release – staff will coordinate with the Fire Department and 
WSDOT for information on releases, including any due to major transportation 
corridors through the City, using historical records, discussions with 
manufacturers and businesses, and the Hazard Mitigation Plans prepared by 
other agencies, particularly Water District #111 and Covington Water District, 
which have conducted inventories of threats to the groundwater supply. 

39 of 73



 

2 

• Other Threats – may include terrorism and cyber terrorism, as there are major 
critical power facilities within and crossing the City, as well as other human-
caused hazards. 

 
Public Outreach 
From the project outset, public participation will be invited and encouraged.  Interested 
community and business groups will be contacted, as well as technical specialists and 
other interest groups.  Examples include the CERT group, the Chamber of Commerce, 
local medical facilities, Homeowner's Associations, schools and church groups.  
Technical input will be sought from the Police and Fire departments, the city's own Fire 
Prevention Bureau, Seattle Public Utilities, the local water and sewer utility districts, 
Bonneville Power Administration, King County and the neighboring cities of Auburn, 
Maple Valley and Kent. 
 
The City will publicly advertise hearings and project status updates and make draft 
versions of the plan available for public review and comment.  Public input on proposed 
policies, projects and priorities will be factored into the plan throughout development.   
The City uses a variety of public outreach tools, including email, the city website and 
Facebook. 
 
Budget 
Not to exceed $49,625.  The city budget includes costs to cover staff time devoted to 
supervising the consultant contract and creating copies of the plan from city funds.  All 
of the grant portion will be used to cover consultant fees.  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works 
Director, will work in partnership with Shellie Bates, Office Supervisor/Public Works, to 
provide oversight for the project and of the consultant team. 
 
See Exhibit B – Project Budget. 
 
Schedule for Completion of the Plan 
The proposed time frame is from October 2012 through September 2014. 
 
See Exhibit C – Project Schedule. 
 
  

40 of 73



 

3 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
Project Budget 

 
APPROVED BUDGET CATEGORY ESTIMATED COST 

Task 1:  Description of Process and Plan Organization $2,714 

Task 2:  Hazard Assessment $2,675 

Task 3:  Profiles of Key Natural Hazards $8,164 

Task 4:  Vulnerability Assessment $6,664 

Task 5:  Goals and Objectives $7,339 

Task 6:  Mitigation Strategies $3,064 

Task 7:  Adoption and Incorporation of Plan $3,275 

Task 8:  Project Management $2,375 

Task 9:  Document Development $6,955 

Task 10:  Map and exhibit preparation $4,400 

In-Kind Contribution $2,000 

TOTAL $49,625 

 
  

41 of 73



 

4 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Project Schedule 
 

DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY/TASK SCHEDULED COMPLETION DATE 

Describe planning process January 31, 2013 

Hazard Assessment, profile and vulnerabilities March 29, 2013 

Estimate potential financial losses and consequences June 28, 2013 

Review Policies and develop new policies November 29, 2013 
Identify and prioritize potential mitigation projects 
with cost/ benefit analysis, maps, and exhibits 

 

February 28, 2014 

Complete draft plan and hold public hearing April 30, 2014 

Submit draft, respond and revise, submit final plan September 30, 2014 

Total Time Required to Complete This Project:  24 months 

 

Quarterly Reports Due on Project Progress, Final 
Project Report and all documentation, site visits 
and inspections. 

 

January 15, 2013; 
April 15, 2013; 
July 15, 2013; 
October 15, 2013; 
January 15, 2014; 
April 15, 2014; 
July 15, 2014; 
October 15, 2014 

 

42 of 73



Consent Agenda Item C-4 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  January 8, 2013 
 
 

SUBJECT:   2013 APPOINTMENTS TO REGIONAL FORUMS: 
 

-  South County Area Transportation Board (SCATBd) 
-  Sound Cities Association’s Public Issues Committee (PIC) 
-  Metropolitan Solid Waste Advisory Committee (MSWAC) 
-  Water Resource Inventory Area 9 Forum (WRIA 9) 
-  Kent Fire Department Regional Fire Authority (RFA) 
-  Southeast Area Transportation Solutions (SEATS) 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  City Council 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Table of Regional Forums Requiring Council Appointment 
  

PREPARED BY:  Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
   
EXPLANATION:  
In January of each year, the City Council appoints primary and alternate representatives to 
represent the City of Covington at the above regional forums. 
 
Councilmembers have been contacted and current recruitment results are noted in the attached 
table.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Discontinue participation in some of the forums.   
2. Select different primary representatives and alternates than those proposed in the attached 

table. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: None.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION: ____Ordinance   _____Resolution     X   Motion    ____Other 
 

Councilmember  ______ moves, Councilmember __________  
seconds, to approve the appointments as proposed in the attachment. 
 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

43 of 73



                    ATTACHMENT 1 
 

REGIONAL FORUMS REQUIRING COUNCIL APPOINTMENT – 2012 & 2013 
 

Group Notes 
Meeting 

Information 

Number 
of 

Positions 

2012 
Alternate 

2012 
Member 

2013 Alternate 
2013 

Member 

Metropolitan 
Solid Waste 

Advisory 
Committee 
(MSWAC) 

 
Diane Yates 206-296-4406, 
diane.yates@kingcounty.gov. 
The committee advises the Executive, the solid waste 
interlocal forum and the King County Council in all 
matters relating to solid waste management and 
participates in the development of the solid waste 
management system plan. 
 

2nd Friday, 11:15 
am – 1:15 pm @ 

Seattle King Street 
Center 

1 primary 
& 1 

alternate 
Jim Scott Glenn 

Akramoff Jim Scott Glenn 
Akramoff 

South County 
Area 

Transportation 
Board 

(SCATBd) 

 
Contact: Sally Marks 206-263-4710 or 
sally.marks@kingcounty.gov 
 
http://www.kingcounty.gov/transportation/kcdot/Planning
AndPolicy/RegionalTransportationPlanning/Subareas/South
_County_Area_Transportation_Board.aspx 
 

3rd Tuesday, 
9:00 am @ SeaTac 
City Hall Council 

Chambers 

1 primary 
& 1 

alternate 

Don 
Vondran 

Wayne 
Snoey, Chair Don Vondran Wayne 

Snoey 

Sound Cities 
Association 

(SCA) - 
Public Issues 
Committee 

(PIC)* 

Contact:  Kristy Burwell 206-433-7168 or 
Kristy@SuburbanCities.org,  
 
http://www.suburbancities.org/public_issues/index.shtml 
  

 
2nd Wednesday, 

7:00 pm @ 
Renton City Hall; 

see website to 
confirm 

 

 
1 primary 

& 1 
alternate 

Margaret 
Harto 

Marlla 
Mhoon 

a) Margaret Harto 
b) Jeff Wagner 

Marlla 
Mhoon 

WRIA 9 Forum 

 
http://www.ecy.wa.gov/apps/watersheds/wriapages/
index.html 
 

Varies – See 
Website for 
information 

1 primary 
& 1 

alternate 

Glenn 
Akramoff 

Marlla 
Mhoon 

Co-Chair 
Glenn Akramoff 

Marlla 
Mhoon, 

Co-Chair 

Kent Regional 
Fire Authority 

(RFA) 

 
Governing board consists of 3 Kent councilmembers, 3 
Kent fire district commissioners and one non-voting 
Covington councilmember. 
 

1st and 3rd 
Wednesday of 

each month 
1 primary NA Margaret 

Harto NA Margaret 
Harto 

Southeast Area 
Transportation 

Solutions 
(SEATS) 

 
Elected officials from cities of Covington, Black 
Diamond, Maple Valley, Auburn and Enumclaw, formed 
through Interlocal agreement. 
 

Last Wednesday, 
1:00 pm, Cov. City 

Hall 

1 primary 
& 1 

alternate 
Jim Scott Wayne 

Snoey Jim Scott Wayne 
Snoey 

 

44 of 73

mailto:diane.yates@kingcounty.gov�
mailto:sally.marks@kingcounty.gov�
http://www.kingcounty.gov/transportation/kcdot/PlanningAndPolicy/RegionalTransportationPlanning/Subareas/South_County_Area_Transportation_Board.aspx�
http://www.kingcounty.gov/transportation/kcdot/PlanningAndPolicy/RegionalTransportationPlanning/Subareas/South_County_Area_Transportation_Board.aspx�
http://www.kingcounty.gov/transportation/kcdot/PlanningAndPolicy/RegionalTransportationPlanning/Subareas/South_County_Area_Transportation_Board.aspx�
mailto:Kristy@SuburbanCities.org�
http://www.suburbancities.org/public_issues/index.shtml�
http://www.ecy.wa.gov/apps/watersheds/wriapages/index.html�
http://www.ecy.wa.gov/apps/watersheds/wriapages/index.html�


Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: January 8, 2013 

 
SUBJECT:  PUBLIC HEARING AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON EXTENDING THE 

MORATORIUM ON MEDICAL MARIJUANA PRODUCTION AND 
PROCESSING FACILITIES, DISPENSARIES, AND COLLECTIVE GARDENS 
FOR SIX MONTHS 

 
RECOMMENDED BY: Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 Richard Hart, Community Development Director  
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Ordinance No. 12-12, adopted July 24, 2012, and effective Aug. 1, 2012, extending for 
six months the previous moratorium on medical marijuana production and processing 
facilities, dispensaries, and collective gardens. 

2. Proposed ordinance extending said moratorium for an additional six months. 
 

PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of this agenda bill action is to hold a public hearing to allow public testimony and 
take action on a six-month extension to the existing moratorium on medical marijuana 
production and processing facilities, dispensaries, and collective gardens.  
 
In August 2011, the city council established a twelve-month moratorium on the establishment, 
location, operation, licensing, maintenance, or continuation of medical marijuana dispensaries, 
production facilities, processing facilities, and collective gardens. That moratorium was extended 
for an additional six months, effective August 1, 2012, and is scheduled to expire on February 
12, 2013.  This proposed ordinance would further extend the existing moratorium an additional 
six months, until August 12, 2013.   
 
Over the past year, the conflict between state and federal law concerning marijuana, either for 
medical or personal use, has increased with the federal government’s threat to criminally 
prosecute local government officials and employees who facilitate or approve medical marijuana 
collective gardens. City staff has continually monitored this changing legal framework, including 
litigation undertaken by neighboring jurisdictions regarding the approval of business licenses for 
medical marijuana-based businesses. 
 
The state initiative legalizing use of marijuana for recreational purposes, which became effective 
on December 6, 2013, further complicates the conflict between state and federal marijuana laws. 
Though the new law does not speak to nor directly affect state law concerning medical marijuana 
production and processing facilities, dispensaries, and collective gardens, by December 6, 2013, 
the state liquor control board will be developing guidelines and regulations for the growing, 
production, and sale of marijuana for recreational purposes. City staff will monitor the state’s 

45 of 73



process in developing these regulations, as they will likely directly impact the form and function 
of any future city regulations regarding medical marijuana facilities.  
 
City staff has also spent considerable time analyzing potential land use and zoning issues and the 
varying approaches other jurisdictions have taken towards regulating medical marijuana.   
However, the high potential for additional legislative or judicial clarification of the conflict 
between state and federal laws, as well as the state liquor board’s development of similar 
regulations for recreational marijuana production and use, requires that the city continue to 
consider the appropriate mechanism to properly allow and regulate collective gardens and the 
distribution of medical marijuana.  Therefore, the city must extend the moratorium to avoid 
collective gardens and other related medical marijuana businesses and facilities from vesting 
until the city’s regulatory authority is clarified and appropriate regulations are adopted.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Do not adopt a moratorium. 
2. Provide alternate direction to staff. 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Staff time 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:     X    Ordinance         Resolution     _   Motion     _   Other 

 
Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to adopt an ordinance providing for a six-month extension to the 
existing moratorium on medical marijuana collective gardens, production 
and processing facilities, dispensaries, and related businesses.  
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager; City Attorney; Finance Director  

46 of 73



ATTACHMENT 1

47 of 73



48 of 73



49 of 73



50 of 73



1 of 4 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 01-13 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, AMENDING ORDINANCE 
NO. 12-12 TO EXTEND THE MORATORIUM ON THE 
ESTABLISHMENT, LOCATION, OPERATION, LICENSING, 
MAINTENANCE, OR CONTINUATION OF MEDICAL 
MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES, PRODUCTION FACILITIES, 
PROCESSING FACILITIES, COLLECTIVE GARDENS, AND 
RELATED BUSINESSES WITHIN THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON FOR AN ADDITIONAL SIX MONTHS; 
PROVIDING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE 
MORATORIUM EXTENSION; ADOPTING FINDINGS OF 
FACT SUPPORTING THE MORATORIUM ADOPTED BY 
ORDINANCE NO’s. 08-11 and 12-12; AND PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 9, 2011, the Covington City Council passed Ordinance No. 08-

11, which declared an emergency necessitating the immediate imposition of a moratorium on the 
establishment, location, operation, licensing, maintenance, or continuation of medical marijuana 
dispensaries, production facilities, processing facilities, and collective gardens, as more 
particularly described in Ordinance No. 08-11; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 24, 2012, the Covington City Council passed Ordinance No. 12-12, 

which provided for a six-month extension of moratorium on the establishment, location, 
operation, licensing, maintenance, or continuation of medical marijuana dispensaries, production 
facilities, processing facilities, collective gardens, or any business or organization offering any 
type of service relating to collective gardens or to producing, processing, or dispensing medical 
marijuana; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 69.51A of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW), creates an 

affirmative defense for qualifying patients to the charge of possession of marijuana, and provides 
that such patients can, as an alternative to growing marijuana for their own use, designate a 
designated provider who can provide medical marijuana to only one patient at a time; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Department of Health has opined that “the law 
[current Chapter 69.51A RCW] does not allow dispensaries” and that it is “not legal to buy or 
sell marijuana,” but the Department of Health has left enforcement of the law to local officials; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, state law also allows, under certain conditions, collective gardens and 
provides the city the authority to adopt zoning, health and safety, and taxing  regulations relating 
to collective gardens; and 
 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Attorneys for Washington State have reiterated that marijuana 
possession, production, and distribution is a federal criminal offense and that local officials and 

ATTACHMENT 2

51 of 73



2 of 4 
 

employees would not be immune to prosecution under the federal Controlled Substances Act, 21 
U.S.C.§801 et seq., even if state law decriminalized the use, possession, and production of 
marijuana for medical purposes; and 

 
WHEREAS, though state law allows medical marijuana collective gardens, the City of 

Covington currently has no licensing, zoning, or land use requirements that address collective 
gardens for medical marijuana production or that address medical marijuana production, 
processing, or dispensing facilities, should such dispensaries be determined to be authorized; and 

 
WHEREAS, unregulated collective gardens are anticipated to have negative secondary 

impacts including a possible increase of criminal activity in the area of collective gardens, a 
possible increase in illegal drug activity in the area of the collective gardens, possible illegal 
distribution of medical marijuana, and may present health and safety concerns related to the 
handling of chemicals used in the growing and processing of marijuana, the ventilation of 
collective gardens and related air quality issues, and the electrical wiring of collective garden 
facilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Covington City Council established a one-year moratorium to prevent 

the location and vesting of any medical marijuana collective gardens or medical marijuana 
production, processing, or dispensing facilities within the city while the city lacks the necessary 
tools to ensure regulation of the negative secondary impacts and health and safety concerns and 
to maintain the status quo while legal, political, and policy and city code impacts are studied and 
considered; and 

 
WHEREAS, given the continuing uncertainty of the legal status of medical marijuana 

production facilities, processing facilities, and dispensaries under the current state law, and given 
the possibility of several pending actions that could clarify the conflict between state and federal 
law, including: (a) John and Jane Does 1-13 v. City of Seattle, King County Cause No. 11-2-
42621-SEA regarding Seattle’s regulation of collective gardens; (b) Cannabis Action Coalition, 
et.al. v. City of Kent, King Count Cause No. 12-2-19726-1-KNT regarding Kent’s prohibition of 
collective gardens; (c) Bellingham’s enforcement against collective gardens operating within its 
city limits and (d) the recent passage of Initiative 502 legalizing the recreational use of marijuana 
in the state, the city requires additional time for continued thorough legal review of the 
complicated legal framework that currently exists and is still evolving; and 

 
WHEREAS, given the limitations on city staff time and resources, it is not an efficient 

use of city staff time or resources to commence a planning process by staff and an introduction 
of materials to the Planning Commission and the City Council until the legal issues surrounding 
the development of regulations for medical marijuana production, processing, and dispensing 
facilities, as well as collective gardens, are resolved; and 

 
WHEREAS, the planning process that occurs will need to consider complex legal, 

zoning, licensing, health and safety, and taxation regulations for collective gardens, and 
marijuana production, processing and dispensing facilities should they be deemed legal; and 

 

52 of 73



3 of 4 
 

WHEREAS, the city must extend the moratorium on the establishment, location, 
licensing, maintenance, or continuation of medical marijuana dispensaries, production facilities, 
processing facilities, collective gardens, and related businesses for an additional six months to 
act as a stop-gap measure to provide an opportunity for legal clarification of the city’s ability to 
regulate the siting and activities of collective gardens and medical marijuana dispensaries, 
production facilities, processing facilities, and related businesses if deemed legal, and to avoid 
the unregulated establishment of collective gardens within the city with rights contrary to and 
inconsistent with any revision the city may make to its regulatory scheme as a result of the city’s 
continued consideration of this matter; and  

 
WHEREAS, on January 8, 2013, the City Council held a public hearing on the 

moratorium as required by RCW 35A.63.220, and on that date accepted testimony from all 
members of the public desiring to be heard on the subject; and 

 
WHEREAS, based upon the public testimony received on January 8, 2013, and based 

upon additional materials presented by city staff, a moratorium of limited duration is in the 
public interest; and 

 
WHEREAS, on January 8, 2013, the City Council considered the foregoing facts, 

materials, and testimony, and deliberated on the issue of whether to maintain the moratorium; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, RCW 35A.63.220 authorizes the City Council to adopt land use moratoria; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, on January 8, 2013, the city’s SEPA Responsible Official determined that 

the moratorium is exempt from SEPA under RCW 43.21.030(2) (c); 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Adoption of Defined Terms. For the purpose of this ordinance, the definitions 
of “Medical marijuana dispensary”, “Medical marijuana processing facility”, “Medical 
marijuana production facility”, and “Medical marijuana collective garden” in Ordinance No. 08-
11are hereby adopted by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

 
Section 2. Findings of Fact. In accordance with RCW 35A.63.220, which requires the 

City Council to adopt findings of fact justifying the adoption of moratoria, the “WHEREAS” 
clauses set forth above are hereby adopted as the City Council’s findings of fact in support of the 
moratorium imposed by this ordinance and are by this reference incorporated herein as if set 
forth in their entirety.  

 
Section 3. Moratorium Expiration. The six-month moratorium established by Ordinance 

No. 12-12 shall not lapse and shall be extended for an additional six months to be effective 
through August 12, 2013.  
 

53 of 73



4 of 4 
 

Section 4. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this ordinance be pre-empted by state 
or federal law or regulation, such decision or preemption shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 
Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of 

the city and shall take full force and effect five days after the date of publication 
 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON, at a regular meeting thereof this 8th day of January, 2013.  
 

      
Mayor Margaret Harto 

 
PUBLISHED:  January 11, 2013 
EFFECTIVE:   January 16, 2013 

ATTESTED: 
 
      
Sharon Scott 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
Sara Springer 
City Attorney 
 

54 of 73



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: January 8, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:   APPROVAL OF CONSULTANT PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH 

STALZER & ASSOCIATES FOR THE NORTHERN GATEWAY STUDY 
PHASE II AND FUNDING CONTRACT WITH OAKPOINTE HOLDINGS LLC    

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Map of Northern Gateway Study Area 
2. Consultant Personal Services Contract with Stalzer & Associates, including Exhibit A, 

Scope of Services, Timeline, Deliverables, and Cost Breakout  
3. Draft Funding Contract with Oakpointe Holdings LLC  

 
PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                
EXPLANATION: 
As directed by the City Council on November 27, 2012, city staff has prepared a professional 
services contract with Stalzer & Associates (“Consultant”) for the preparation of a subarea plan 
for the Northern Gateway Area Phase II, South Subarea, involving the Hawk property of the 
gravel extraction and asphalt plant with Oakpointe Holdings LLC (“Oakpointe”).  This south 
subarea encompasses approximately 210 acres on the southeast side of Highway 18 at the 
existing SE 256th St. interchange.  (See Map Attachment 1)   
 
The scope of the proposed study involves preparation of a subarea plan, development of 
proposed zoning districts and proposed zoning & development regulations, a planned action EIS, 
public participation and outreach, an analysis of existing conditions, constraints and critical 
areas, and infrastructure capacities. (See Services Contract Attachment 2)    
 
The consultant team assembled has extensive experience in similar master planning efforts for 
other communities in the Puget Sound region and should be an outstanding multi-disciplinary 
team to accomplish the city’s goal for the Northern Gateway study area.  The proposed 
professional services contract with the Consultant is for $315,903, which includes a small 
contribution of $6,684 from the city for the Consultant to perform expanded traffic analysis that 
will be required in 2014 as part of our GMA Comprehensive Plan update.  City staff concluded it 
was better to spend this money as part of the Northern Gateway study.  This allows the city to 
evaluate traffic impacts of any future development based on our city model and current traffic 
counts throughout the city and to also achieve an economy of scale for the work that will be 
completed by our traffic consultants David Evans & Associates.  The remaining $309,219 of the 
Consultant contract will be paid for by Oakpointe through an accompanying funding contract. 
(See Funding Contract Attachment 3)   
 
 

55 of 73



City staff seeks Council review and approval of the professional services contract with the 
Consultant to complete Phase II of the Northern Gateway area study.  The timetable for 
completion of Phase II is approximately twelve months with the final report submitted to the city 
council for review by December 31, 2013.  The repayment to the city of contract funds by 
Oakpointe is spread over eighteen months, through June, 2014, with Oakpointe paying an 
appropriate interest rate and administrative costs for payment made beyond the twelve month 
performance period of the contract.  This interest rate will be the current rate of the Local 
Government Investment Pool (LGIP) Gross Earnings Rate at the time of billing each month, plus 
6.0% of the amount delayed for payment beyond the twelve month performance period, to cover 
city administrative costs.  Currently the LGIP rate is .18%, but it fluctuates month to month.            
 
 ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Request additional information or input from staff on recommended consultant scope of 
work, time schedules, and/or funding costs and sources. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The city is contributing $6,684 for the Consultant to conduct an expanded transportation analysis 
as part of this contract.  Funds for this expanded transportation analysis will come from the 
professional services line item in the Community Development Department.  The remaining 
$309,219 will be paid for by Oakpointe.  Oakpointe has requested that their repayment to the city 
for the costs of the contract be spread over eighteen months rather than twelve months of the 
contract performance.  The City is recommending that Oakpointe be allowed to repay a portion 
of the contract funds during the following year in 2014, with Oakpointe being charged an 
appropriate interest rate and administrative costs for amounts paid beyond the twelve month 
performance period of the contract.          
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    _____Ordinance            Resolution  __X____Motion           Other 
 

Councilmember ______________moves, Councilmember _____________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute a professional services 
agreement in the amount of $315,903 between the City of Covington and 
Stalzer & Associates to prepare Phase II of the Northern Gateway Study & 
Analysis for the South Subarea involving the Hawk Property Gravel 
Extraction Site.       
 
Councilmember ______________moves, Councilmember _____________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement between the 
City of Covington and Oakpointe Holdings LLC, totaling $309,219 as 
payment for Phase II of the Northern Gateway Study & Analysis for the 
South Subarea involving the Hawk Property Gravel Extraction Site.       
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager  
         City Attorney   
         Finance Director 
  

56 of 73



SE 256TH ST

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 261ST ST

SE 262ND PL

19
1S

T P
L S

E

20
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

17
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 244TH ST

19
3R

D 
PL

 SE

SE 244TH PL

FRONTAGE RD

SE 262ND ST

SE 246TH ST
17

7T
H 

PL
 S

E

SE 259TH ST

SE 260TH ST

18
5T

H P
L S

E

186TH PL SE

18
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE18

3R
D 

AV
E S

E

17
5T

H 
WA

Y 
SE

SE 247TH ST

19
9T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 257TH ST

17
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

17
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 260TH PL

SE
 18

4T
H 

PL

SE 259TH PL

18
3R

D 
PL

 S
E

19
5T

H P
L S

E

19
2N

D 
PL

 SE

18
4T

H P
L S

E

SE 26
3R

D PL

19
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

19
6T

H 
AV

E S
E

17
8T

H 
PL

 SE

175
TH PL SE

18
1S

T P
L S

E

20
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

19
7T

H 
AV

E S
E

185TH LOOP SE

19
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 245TH PL

SE 246TH PL

SE 247TH PL

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

SE 241ST PL

SE 261ST CT

20
2N

D A
VE

 SE

SE 261ST PL

19
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 243RD ST

19
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 263RD CT

183RD CT SE

18
7 T

H P
L S

E

SE 258TH PL

SE 242ND ST

SE 241ST ST

20
1S

T C
T S

E

18
0T

H 
PL

 SE

187
TH CT SE

SE 244TH LN

SE 245TH CT

20
1S

T P
L S

E

SE 264TH ST

SE WAX RD

SE 260TH PL

19
0T

H 
PL

 SE17
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 260TH PL

201ST AVE SE

18
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 258TH ST

SE 262ND ST

SE 263RD ST SE 264TH ST

SE 260TH ST

SE 262ND ST

188TH AVE SE

SR 18

18
4T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 260TH ST

SE 259TH PL

SE 259TH ST

SE 257TH ST

SE 259TH PL

SE 263RD ST

18
5T

H 
PL

 SE

18
9T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 258TH STSE 258TH ST

SE 259TH PL
SE 260TH ST

20
6T

H 
AV

E S
E

19
6T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 262ND ST

SE 261ST PL

18
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 261ST ST

17
5T

H 
AV

E S
E

19
3R

D 
PL

 SE
SE 262ND ST

SE 244TH PL

SE 243RD ST

18
5T

H 
PL

 SE

18
3R

D A
VE

 S
E

172ND AVE SE

SE 260TH PL
19

2N
D 

PL
 S

E

20
3R

D A
VE

 SE

18
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
4T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 260TH CT

198TH PL SE

SE 263RD ST

SE 263RD PL

174TH PL SE

185TH AVE SE

SE 261ST CT

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

SE 260TH ST

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

.
1 inch = 700 feet

Northern Gateway Annexation Area

Created By: Shawn Buck 1/12/2012

Sub-Area Plan Study Boundary

City Limits

Streams/Creeks

Surface Water

ATTACHMENT 1

57 of 73



 
 Page 1 of 2 

Contract No. __________ 
CONTRACT FOR SERVICES  

 
 This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of Covington, Washington (the “City"), 
and       Stalzer and Associates                                    , (the “Consultant”), whose principal office is 
located at    603 Stewart Street, Suite 512, Seattle, Washington, 98101_____________.  
 WHEREAS, the City has determined the need to have certain services performed for its citizens 
but does not have the manpower or expertise to perform such services; and  
 WHEREAS, the City desires to have the Consultant perform such services pursuant to certain 
terms and conditions; now, therefore,  
 IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual benefits and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 
 1. Scope and Schedule of Services to be Performed by Consultant.  The Consultant shall 
perform those services described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference as if fully set forth.  In performing such services, the Consultant shall at all times comply 
with all federal, state, and local statutes, rules and ordinances applicable to the performance of such 
services and the handling of any funds used in connection therewith.  The Consultant shall request and 
obtain prior written approval from the City if the scope or schedule is to be modified in any way. 
 2. Compensation and Method of Payment.  The City shall pay the Consultant for services 
rendered upon receipt of invoices received from the Consultant.  The total amount to be paid shall not 
exceed $ 315,903.   at the rates shown in Exhibit A, Scope of Services.  
 3. Consultant Budget.  The Consultant shall apply the funds received under this Agreement 
within the maximum limits set forth in this Agreement.  The Consultant shall request prior approval 
from the City whenever the Consultant desires to amend its budget in any way. 
 4. Duration of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period 
commencing Wednesday, January 9, 2013 and ending Tuesday, December 31, 2013, unless sooner 
terminated under the provisions hereinafter specified. 
 5. Independent Consultant.  Consultant and City agree that Consultant is an independent 
Consultant with respect to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be considered to create the relationship of employer and employee between the parties 
hereto.  Neither Consultant nor any employee of Consultant shall be entitled to any benefits accorded 
City employees by virtue of the services provided under this Agreement.  The City shall not be 
responsible for withholding or otherwise deducting federal income tax or social security or 
contributing to the State Industrial Insurance Program, or otherwise assuming the duties of an 
employer with respect to the Consultant, or any employee of the Consultant. 
 6. Indemnification.  The Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its 
officers, agents and employees, from and against any and all claims, losses or liability, including 
attorney's fees, arising from the performance of this Agreement, including, without limitation, injury or 
death to persons or damage to property, by the negligent act, omission, or failure of the Consultant, its 
officers, agents, and employees, in performing the work required by this Agreement.  With respect to 
the performance of this Agreement and as to claims against the City, its officers, agents and 
employees, the Consultant expressly waives its immunity under Title 51 of the Revised Code of 
Washington, the Industrial Insurance Act, for injuries to its employees, and agrees that the obligation 
to indemnify, defend and hold harmless provided for in this paragraph extends to any claim brought by 
or on behalf of any employee of the Consultant.  This waiver is mutually negotiated by the parties.  
This paragraph shall not apply to any damage resulting from the sole negligence of the City, its agents 
and employees.  To the extent any of the damages referenced by this paragraph were caused by or 
resulted from the concurrent negligence of the City, its agents or employees, this obligation to 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless is valid and enforceable only to the extent of the negligence of 
the Consultant, its officers, agents, and employees. 
 
7. Record Keeping and Reporting. 

ATTACHMENT 2

58 of 73



 
 Page 2 of 2 

  A. The Consultant shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property, 
financial and programmatic records which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs 
of any nature expended and services performed in the performance of this Agreement and other such 
records as may be deemed necessary by the City to ensure the performance of this Agreement. 
  B. These records shall be maintained for a period of seven (7) years after termination hereof 
unless permission to destroy them is granted by the office of the archivist in accordance with RCW 
Chapter 40.14 and by the City. 
 8. Audits and Inspections.  The records and documents with respect to all matters covered by 
this Agreement shall be subject at all times to inspection, review or audit by law during the 
performance of this Agreement. 
 9. Termination.  This Agreement may at any time be terminated by the City giving to the 
Consultant thirty (30) days written notice of the City's intention to terminate the same.  Failure to 
provide products on schedule may result in contract termination.    
 10. Discrimination Prohibited.  The Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee, 
applicant for employment, or any person seeking the services of the Consultant to be provided under 
this Agreement on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, sex, age, national origin, marital status or 
presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap. 
 11. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or subcontract any portion of 
the services contemplated by this Agreement without the written consent of the City. 
 12. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the parties 
hereto and no other Agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, 
shall be deemed to exist or bind any of the parties hereto.  Either party may request changes in the 
agreement.  Proposed changes which are mutually agreed upon shall be incorporated by written 
amendments to this Agreement. 
 13. Notices.  Notices to the City of Covington shall be sent to the following address: 
   City Clerk, City of Covington 
   16720 SE 271st St, Suite 100 
   Covington, Washington 98042 
  Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the address provided by the Consultant upon the 
signature line below. 
 14. Applicable Law; Venue; Attorney's Fees.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  In the event any suit, arbitration, or 
other proceeding is instituted to enforce any term of this Agreement, the parties specifically understand 
and agree that venue shall be properly laid in King County, Washington.  The prevailing party in any 
such action shall be entitled to its attorney's fees and costs of suit. 
 DATED this                 ______    day of               ____________                                  , 20              . 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON  CONSULTANT:  
 
By:  By:  
Title:     
  Title:  
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:   
  Printed Name:   
  
Sharon Scott, City Clerk  Address:  
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    
Office of the City Attorney 
  Date approved by City Council:   
By: ________________________________  (If Applicable) 

59 of 73



EXHIBIT A 
NORTHERN GATEWAY AREA, PHASE 2: 

SOUTH AREA SUBAREA PLAN AND PLANNED ACTION EIS 
December 20, 2012 

OVERVIEW 
A subarea plan and planned action EIS will be prepared for the south area including both the area within 
the city limits and the adjacent area outside the city limits but within the Covington Urban Growth Area 
(UGA).  The scope of work is similar to the development tasks in the scope of work dated March 21, 
2012, but it includes a wider range of alternatives and annexation facilitation.  The purpose of the 
subarea plan will be to further develop the planning concepts illustrated in the August 13, 2012 
“Preliminary Land Use Concept Plan” subject to additional review of critical areas shown on the Concept 
Plan.   Tasks will include: 

• A Master Land Use Plan containing development areas, street network, critical areas based on City 
of Covington standards, and a passive and active open space network 

• Planning sessions with representatives of the major property owner(s) and the community 

• Land use designations and zoning based on existing or proposed City of Covington Comprehensive 
Plan land use designations and zoning classifications implementing the Master Land Use Plan 

• Capital facilities program and preliminary infrastructure plans  

• Implementing development standards, regulations, and design standards  

• Refinement of the annexation fiscal analysis and facilitation of the annexation process 

• Presentations  at Planning Commission and City Council meetings and public hearings 

It is anticipated that the Planned Action EIS will contain a No Action alternative, two action alternatives, 
one of which will be the preferred alternative. The alternatives would be detailed enough to allow for a 
planned action, development agreement, and tailored policies and code. The key elements of the 
environment for the EIS would include: 

• Earth 

• Plants and Animals 

• Surface Water 

• Air Quality 

• Transportation 

• Land Use 

• Cultural Resources 

• Public Services 

• Utilities 

• Noise 

60 of 73



Northern Gateway Area South Area  Stalzer and Associates Project Team Page 2 of 6    
Phase 2 Scope of Work 
December 20, 2012 

METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

Subarea Plan 
The Subarea Plan will contain: 

• Vision, Goals, Objectives, and Policy Framework 

• Land Use, Circulation, and Open Space Concepts 

• Zoning Map and Regulations,  Design Guidelines, and other Development Standards as 
appropriate 

• Capital Facilities Plan 

Wherever possible, the subarea plan will use or build upon the structure of existing applicable Covington 
development standards and regulations. A zoning map will be prepared reflecting the proposed zoning 
classifications. The design guidelines will be unique to this subarea and clearly differentiate between the 
desired character of the South Study Area and that of downtown Covington. The design guidelines will 
be based on key planning principles that relate to the community vision as well as best practices for 
urban planning.  

The subarea plan will also include a draft capital facilities plan based upon the City’s budget and 6-year 
Capital Improvement Program as well as project lists developed with Draft EIS alternatives. The project 
team will compile cost and revenue information from the City and special districts. The final capital 
facilities plan will be based on the preferred alternative.  It should be noted that cost estimates for parks 
and transportation improvements are not included in the present scope. 

Planned Action EIS 
General Approach: The Existing Conditions Assessment for all topics covered in the Phase 1 Northern 
Gateway Study will be incorporated into the Affected Environment section of the Draft EIS. 

Earth: The project team will use the City’s Critical Area Ordinance maps and the Natural Resource 
Conservation Service maps to characterize existing soil types, especially steep slopes, unstable soils, and 
highly erodible soils.  The existing reclamation plan for the Lakeside gravel mine will be reviewed to 
characterize how post-reclamation soil conditions will affect the suitability for future land uses at the 
current mine site.  Relevant City building code regulations for erosion control and soil stability will be 
summarized and a range of options presented for how the City could implement special geotechnical 
standards for project-level permitting. 

Plants and Animals and Surface Water:  The technical analysis for each section will include a description 
of existing conditions, assessment of the significant adverse impacts (direct, indirect and cumulative), 
evaluation of the potential mitigation measures for each of the alternatives, and discussion of regulatory 
implications and permit requirements.  Up to three report figures will be included.   

Air Quality: Existing air quality conditions and regulations relevant to the proposal will be summarized  
including Puget Sound Clean Air Agency regulations for stationary sources and construction fugitive dust 
and future requirements for Transportation Conformity determinations for roadway improvements.  To 
evaluate potential impacts to regional air quality the City’s forecasts for population growth and regional 

61 of 73



Northern Gateway Area South Area  Stalzer and Associates Project Team Page 3 of 6    
Phase 2 Scope of Work 
December 20, 2012 

vehicle miles traveled (VMT) will be compared to regional Puget Sound forecasts developed by the 
Puget Sound Regional Council (the City will provide the population and VMT data used for this analysis).  
To evaluate greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, city-provided land use forecasts will be used to estimate 
existing GHG emissions and future GHG emissions for each alternative, using the King County GHG 
spreadsheet.  The “Build Carbon Neutral” calculator will be used to forecast soil-carbon GHG emissions 
caused by removing existing vegetation from the study area.   A comprehensive list of relevant GHG 
reduction measures the City could consider as part of project-level environmental permitting will be 
presented. 

Transportation:  A transportation analysis will be prepared combining a technical analysis and  DEA 
transportation modeling.   

• No Action Alternative:  The project team will work with City staff to develop the appropriate future 
citywide land use to be analyzed for 2031 No Action conditions. The land use will be provided to the 
City’s transportation consultant (DEA) who will model it using the City’s travel demand forecasting 
model. This scope assumes that DEA will post-process the model data and provide the forecasted 
2031 PM peak hour volumes in Synchro files. This task also assumes that DEA will provide the model 
results for the City’s arterial links to support concurrency analysis. The project team will evaluate 
future level of service at citywide intersections, and coordinate with City staff and the City’s traffic 
consultant to identify locations where improvements would be needed under No Action conditions 
(without the proposed Subarea Plan). This task assumes that only the PM peak hour would be 
evaluated. It also assumes that 47 citywide intersections would be evaluated (45 intersections 
already defined in the City’s concurrency program plus the two SE 256th Street/SR 18 ramp 
intersections), with up to 10 intersections warranting more detailed analysis to identify projects to 
address potential deficiencies. This task does not include development of cost estimates for 
additional capacity improvement projects that are identified; it is assumed that DEA would be 
retained to develop cost estimates, consistent with the City’s standard methods, if needed. 

• DEIS Action Alternatives – The project team will evaluate two Action alternatives for the DEIS, using 
the following methods.  

o Land Use Assessment – This task assumes time to participate in the workshop to develop the 
land use alternatives and to coordinate with the project team on the transportation aspects of 
the DEIS land use alternatives as they are developed.  

o Trip Generation – Once the land use has been defined for each alternative, we will project the 
trips generated by build-out of the land use that has been defined for each alternative, using 
equations, rates, and methods defined in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip 
Generation and travel mode data compiled by the Puget Sound Regional Council (PSRC). Trip 
generation analysis will take into account the potential for internal trips (trips between uses 
within the project sites), pass-by trips, and diverted-linked trips.  

o Vehicle Trip Distribution and Assignment – The projected trip generation data for each DEIS 
alternative will be provided to the City’s transportation consultant (DEA) who will input the trips 
into the City’s travel demand forecasting model to project the assignment of project-generated 
trips on the City street system. Any new major roads that are anticipated to be built at the 
project site could also be added to the modeled scenarios. This scope assumes that DEA will 
post-process the model data and provide the forecasted 2031 PM peak hour volumes in Synchro 
files, as well as the model results for the City’s arterial links to support concurrency analysis.  

62 of 73



Northern Gateway Area South Area  Stalzer and Associates Project Team Page 4 of 6    
Phase 2 Scope of Work 
December 20, 2012 

o Off-Site Operational and Safety Analysis – A “with project” level of service for 2031 build-out 
conditions for the citywide analysis intersections will be evaluated. This task assumes that initial 
level of service assessment will include all 47 city analysis intersections to determine which 
would carry project-generated trips that exceed the City’s thresholds for transportation impact 
analysis. Intersections expected to be significantly impacted by the project (as defined by City 
standards) will be identified as will improvements needed to address those impacts. The 
collision assessment completed in Phase 1 will be updated to include any additional analysis 
intersections that are added to the study area as a result of the impact analysis.  In addition, the 
analysis will address level of service analysis of up to four Maple Valley intersections. 

o On-Site Access and Circulation Analysis –The level of service at the project site’s potential 
access driveways will be evaluated and potential issues with on-site vehicle circulation 
identified.  Recommendations for the locations and capacities needed for internal roadways and 
driveways will be prepared.  

o Non-Motorized and Transit Analysis – Potential operational and safety impacts of pedestrian 
and bicycle modes will be evaluated and recommendations for connections to the external non-
motorized network identified, as well as internal access and circulation connections.  

o Parking Analysis – The parking supply needs for each land use alternative will be evaluated 
based upon the City’s code requirements.  

o Mitigation – Any improvement projects or other measures that are identified in the tasks 
described above will be documented. This task does not include development of cost estimates 
for any additional transportation improvement projects that are identified.  

o Preliminary DEIS Transportation Section – The methods, results and recommendations of all of 
the tasks described above will be documented in the DEIS transportation section. This task 
assumes creation of up to eight figures.  

o DEIS Transportation Section – Comments provided by the City and project applicant on the 
preliminary draft will be incorporated into the DEIS transportation section.   

o Meetings – This scope assumes two meetings with the project team/City staff during the 
development of the DEIS, and participation in one public meeting held during the DEIS comment 
period.  

• FEIS Preferred Alternative –One Preferred alternative will be evaluated for the FEIS, using the same 
methods described for the DEIS Action alternatives. This scope assumes that analysis of 
transportation impacts will be conducted for the PM peak hour. 

o Phasing Analysis – For mitigation identified to support build-out of the Preferred Alternative, 
trigger points at which the mitigation would be needed will be identified. The trigger points will 
be based upon project-generated trips.  

o Preliminary FEIS Transportation Section – This task assume time to respond to up to 25 unique 
comments on the DEIS transportation section; the tasks defined above will be documented in 
the FEIS transportation section. This task assumes creation of up to two additional figures. It is 
also assumes that no additional intersections or alternatives (besides the Preferred Alternative) 
would require analysis.   

Land Use: Land use patterns, land use compatibility and activity levels, and population/employment 
capacity of the Draft EIS alternatives and Final EIS preferred alternative will be reviewed.  The 

63 of 73



Northern Gateway Area South Area  Stalzer and Associates Project Team Page 5 of 6    
Phase 2 Scope of Work 
December 20, 2012 

relationship of the Subarea Plan to the City’s Comprehensive Plan and other functional plans will be 
identified, as will policy or code provisions that serve as mitigation measures. 

Cultural Resources:  Existing conditions and potential future conditions will be addressed based on the 
area redeveloping and compliance with local, state, and federal regulations. A literature search will be 
documented. If needed, limited locations will be reviewed in the field at a reconnaissance level. There 
will be no shovel probing or excavation associated with this analysis. Contact will be made with local 
tribes in conjunction with the City, to help identify any Traditional Cultural Properties located within the 
project area. Information gathered from the site visit and tribal consultation will be included in the EIS. 

Public Services:  Existing levels of service, estimated needs and demand for service, and projected levels 
of service under each alternative for the range of services that could be altered as a result of each 
studied alternative will be reviewed.  To the extent feasible the analysis will be based on available plans 
and population-based estimates of demand.  Efforts will be coordinated with city staff and service 
providers to craft mitigation language. The analysis will be heavily coordinated with the Capital Facilities 
Plan as it contains similar information about levels of service and planned improvements. 

Utilities: A capacity analysis and identification of deficiencies and other issues for one no action, two 
alternatives, and one preferred alternative will be prepared.  The analysis will include:  a narrative of 
issues regarding sewer, water, and storm facilities to serve the alternatives; an order-of-magnitude 
estimate of costs of providing sewer, water and storm services for the action alternatives and preferred 
plan (to support the capital facility plan); and maps of the necessary facilities by alternative. 

Noise:  The existing noise environment and key existing noise sources in the study area (no baseline 
noise monitoring is proposed) will be qualitatively characterized.  Relevant state and local regulations 
that will minimize future noise impacts caused by future development will be cited.  Published sources 
will be used to estimate future increases in day-night noise levels (Ldn) based on forecast future land 
use population density.  For the future No Action alternative, the potential noise impacts caused by 
continued gravel mining will be evaluated. The Traffic Noise Model (TNM) lookup model will be used to 
develop a general spatial trend for future noise levels near up to three key roadways affecting the study 
area.  Additionally, the noise review will be coordinated with the team’s wildlife specialists to assess 
future wildlife impacts. 

Annexation Fiscal Analysis and Facilitation of the Annexation Process 
The fiscal analysis completed in Phase 1 will be updated to address the potential growth associated with 
the action alternatives of the EIS. Advisory support will be provided to the City on the annexation 
process for the UGA. 

Public Meetings and Presentations 
The Subarea Plan and EIS will be developed in an iterative process, with the following general steps: 

• Community Scoping and Alternatives Workshops:  EIS scoping and subarea plan visioning will be 
conducted with the public, including potential imagery and identity for the South Study Area and a 
hands-on planning exercise with real-world examples of the type and scale of uses and 
developments contemplated for the subarea  

64 of 73



Northern Gateway Area South Area  Stalzer and Associates Project Team Page 6 of 6    
Phase 2 Scope of Work 
December 20, 2012 

• Team Work Session:  Based on the planning concepts illustrated in the August 13, 2012 “Preliminary 
Land Use Concept Plan”, any additional critical area information, and the results of the hands-on 
planning exercise, alternative land plan solutions will be prepared 

• Planning Commission Review – Range of EIS Alternatives:  A range of preliminary alternatives from 
visioning and team workshop, as well as a “Consumer Reports” evaluation or pros/cons analysis of 
the environment, traffic, market, fiscal and similar considerations will be prepared for Planning 
Commission review and direction for the Draft EIS  

• Draft EIS and Draft Subarea Plan Comment Period:  A public meeting will be held during the Draft EIS 
30-day comment period to review the Draft Plan and action alternatives and to develop a preferred 
alternative for study in a Preferred Subarea Plan and Final EIS 

• Planning Commission Workshop, Public Hearing and Deliberations: The project team in coordination 
with city staff will facilitate a workshop with the Planning Commission focusing on the preferred 
plan, proposed comprehensive plan policies and designations; implementing development 
standards and regulations; and design guidelines. The project team will assist the city staff at a 
public hearing and a deliberation session. 

• City Council Review: The project team will assist the city staff at one public hearing and one 
deliberation session with the City Council. 

65 of 73



South Area (Mine Site) Budget

Task Estimate per Task

Task 0: Environmental Reconnaissance & Reclamation Plan Review - Existing Critical Areas

Wetland Reconnaissance Fieldwork (Former mine site, ~200 ac.) $4,520

Wetland Reconnaissance Sketch and Report $2,380

Subtotal $6,900

Task 1: Subarea Plan

Kickoff Meeting with City and Developer $2,157

Charette with City and Developer $12,547

Community Workshop $10,372

Meeting with City and Developer re: two alternative plans $8,391

Planning Commission Workshop $3,537

Refinement of Alternatives $9,594

Land Use Designations and Zoning $11,601

Design Guidelines $13,601

Meeting with City and Developer $1,847

Subarea Plan $2,781

Capital Facilities Program $12,384

Subtotal $88,811

Task 2: Planned Action EIS*

Scoping $10,734

Preliminary Draft EIS $126,937

Draft EIS $17,856

Preliminary Final EIS $27,010

Final EIS $11,858

Subtotal $194,397

Task 3:  Annexation and Fiscal Analysis
$6,132

Subtotal $6,132

Task 4: Public Meetings

Planning Commission $4,011

City Council $2,437

Subtotal $6,448

Task 5: Project Management

Coordination and Administration $6,531

Subtotal $6,531

Cost $309,219

Subtotal Consultant Cost $309,219

Project Expenses @ ~2% of project budget +$500 for traffic counts $6,684
Estimated Project Total $315,903

*Note: Includes traffic analysis beyond the project site to address intersections elsewhere in the City and model study area (e.g. Maple Valley). 

66 of 73



 1 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
AGREEMENT  

 
 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this ___ day of January, 2013, by and between the 
City of Covington (“City”), a Washington municipal corporation, and Oakpointe Holdings LLC, 
(“Oakpointe”) a limited liability company. 
 
 RECITALS: 
 
 A. At their Council Meeting on November 27, 2012, Covington’s City Council, 
pursuant to a request from private developers, discussed future development possibilities for the 
area known as the “Northern Gateway”, South Subarea, which encompasses approximately 210 
acres on the southeast side of Highway 18 at the existing SE 256th Street interchange; and 
 
 B. Covington’s City Council directed City staff to prepare an agreement for said 
Subarea Plan and Planned Action EIS; and 
 
 C. Through an RFP process in 2012 the City selected Stalzer and Associates 
(“Consultant”) to perform two study phases of the Northern Gateway Area, including subarea 
plans; Phase 2 Study Agreement between the City and the Consultant is attached hereto as 
Exhibit A and incorporated by this reference; and 
 
 D. As a major property stakeholder within the Northern Gateway Area, South 
Subarea, and as a primary beneficiary of the Phase 2 study analysis, Oakpointe has agreed to 
share in the costs of the Phase 2 Study pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set forth 
herein, the City and Oakpointe do hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1. Engagement.  Oakpointe does hereby engage the City and the City does hereby 
agree to perform the services more particularly described herein.   
 
 2. Scope of Services.  The City shall execute the agreement with the Consultant to 
perform the services described in Exhibit A, the Phase 2 Study.  At the completion of the Phase 2 
Study, the City shall provide copies of any and all records, reports, designs, files, documents, 
drawings, specifications, data or information, regardless of form or format, and all other 
materials prepared or produced by the Consultant in connection with the Phase 2 Study.  No 
confidential information obtained or created by Consultant shall be disclosed to any person or 
party other than the City without the City’s prior written consent. The City shall remain the 
owner of any documents produced by the Consultant.  
 
 3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period 
commencing upon execution and ending upon the completion of the Phase 2 Study and 
repayment of all funds to the city, but in any event no later than June 30, 2014 (“Term”), unless 
earlier terminated under the provisions of this Agreement.  This Agreement may be extended for 
additional periods of time upon the mutual written agreement of the City and Oakpointe.   
 
 
 

4. Compensation and Method of Payment.   

ATTACHMENT 3

67 of 73



 2 

 
  4.1 Compensation.  In consideration of the City performing the services 
described herein, Oakpointe agrees to pay the City an amount not to exceed $309,219, plus any 
interest at the current Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) Gross Earnings Rate at the 
time of billing, and city administrative costs of 6% for any delayed payments into 2014. 
 
  4.2. Method of Payment.  Payment by Oakpointe shall be made in eighteen 
(18) equal monthly installments commencing on the last day of the month this Agreement is 
executed; subsequent installments shall be due on or before the last day of each consecutive 
month thereafter, with interest and administrative costs for any payments made during 2014.    
 
 5. Termination.  Prior to the expiration of the Term, this Agreement may be 
terminated immediately, with or without cause, by either party.  In the event of termination or 
suspension, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, worksheets, models, reports or 
other materials prepared by the Consultant shall be submitted to Oakpointe within ten (10) days 
of the date of termination. In the event this Agreement is terminated or suspended, the City shall 
be entitled to payment for all services satisfactorily performed and reimbursable expenses 
incurred by the Consultant to the date of termination.   
 
 6. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the exhibits attached hereto, 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this 
Agreement.  There are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations other than those contained 
herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous communications, negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either verbal or written, between the parties hereto concerning the 
subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 7. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by writing 
signed by all parties hereto.   
 
 8. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of either party to declare any breach or default 
immediately upon occurrence shall not waive such breach or default.  Failure of either party to 
declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of that party’s right to declare another 
breach or default. 
 
 9. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be 
severable.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement shall 
not affect the other provisions hereof, and the Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if 
such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a part of this Agreement.  
 
 10. Notices.  All notices, payments and other communications hereunder shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or mailed, by first 
class or certified mail, with postage prepaid, 
 
  10.1 If to Oakpointe Holdings LLC, to: 
 

Name 
   Company 
   Address 
   Address 
 

68 of 73



 3 

or to such other person or place as Oakpointe shall furnish to the City in writing; and 
 

10.2 If to the City, to: 
 

   City of Covington 
   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100 
   Covington, WA  98042 
 
or to such other person or place as the City shall furnish to Oakpointe in writing. 
 

Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon personal delivery or, if mailed, upon 
the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days after the date of mailing. 
 
 11. Governing Law / Venue.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Washington. The venue for any cause of action arising out of this 
Agreement shall be King County, Washington. 
 
 12. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any default under this Agreement, the 
substantially defaulting party agrees to pay the substantially non-defaulting party’s reasonable 
expenses which the latter incurs by reason thereof, including but not limited to reasonable 
attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of such default or the determination of 
the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in legal proceedings, or 
otherwise.  The term “legal proceedings” as used in this paragraph shall include all litigation, 
arbitration, administrative, bankruptcy and judicial proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 
 
 13. Authority.  Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City and 
Oakpointe represents and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to execute and 
deliver this Agreement on behalf of Oakpointe or the City. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year 
first written above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
 
____________________________________  
By: Derek Matheson      
Its: City Manager      
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk    Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 

69 of 73



 4 

Oakpointe Holdings LLC  
 
 
_____________________________________ 
By: ______________________________ 
Its: ______________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF ____________) 
 
On this day personally appeared before me ______________________, to me known to be the 
_______________________ of _____________________________________that executed the 
foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and 
deed of said corporation, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that 
he/she was authorized to execute said instrument and that the seal affixed, if any, is the corporate 
seal of said corporation. 
 

GIVEN my hand and official seal this ______ day of ______________________, 2012. 
 

_____________________________________ 
_____________________________________ 
     (typed/printed name of notary) 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington. 
My commission expires__________________ 

 

70 of 73



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date: January 8, 2013  
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

January 22, 2013 – City Council Special & Regular Meeting  
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

71 of 73



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, January 22, 2013                                                                         City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council will interview Parks & Recreation Commission applicants beginning at 5:30 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
• Annual Update from King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn 
• Human Services Sales Tax Update – Mike Heinisch, Kent Youth & Family Services 
• Presentation on Solid Waste Interlocal Agreement – King County Representative 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  January 8, 2013 Joint Study Session with Planning Commission and January 8, 

2013 Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Agreement for Storm Sewer Cleaning (Akramoff) 
C-4. Approve Regional Disaster Plan (Akramoff) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  January 10 meeting; December meeting canceled. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  December 13, January 5 (special), and January 10 meetings. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  December 12 and January 16 meetings. 
• Planning Chair Daniel Key:  January 17 meeting; Dec. and January 3 meetings canceled. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  December 13 special meeting.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointments to Parks & Recreation Commission (Council) 
2. Discuss Preliminary Solid Waste Contract with Republic Services (Akramoff) 
3. Accept Engineering Contract for Project Design (Akramoff) 
4. Report from Budget Priorities and Advisory Committee (Hendrickson) 

Draft 
as of 01/03/13 

 

72 of 73

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


5. Approve Contracts with Stalzer & Associates and BranBar, LLC for Northern Gateway 
Phase II (Hart) 

6. Give Staff Direction on Solid Waste Interlocal Agreement (Akramoff) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
• Review the Performance of a Public Employee (RCW 42.30.110(1)(g))  

   
ADJOURN  
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-
480-2400.  

73 of 73


	01-08-13 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, January 8, 2013                                                                           City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	C-1 Green Sheet 01-08-2013 Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	C-1 Attachment 12.11.2012 Reg CC
	RESOLUTION NO. 12-11
	A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF WOODBRIDGE LU11-0012/2106 FOR RECORDING.
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-12

	C-2 Green Sheet 01-08-2013 Vouchers Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	C-2 Voucherr Attachments Part 1
	C-2 Voucher Attachments Part 2
	C-3 Green Sheet 01-08-13 Hazard Mitigation Plan Consultant
	C-3 Attachment 1 Tetra Tech Agreement
	C-4 Blue Sheet 01-08-13 Appointments to Regional Forums Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-4

	C-4 Attachment 1 Board Representatives 2012-13
	Item 1 Blue Sheet FINAL_Blue Sheet Extending Moratorium on Medical Marijuana_SBS Edit 1-8-13
	Item 1 Attachment 1 Ord. 12-12 on Med. Mar. Moratorium Ext. 1-8-13
	Item 1 Attachment 2 FINAL_Attachment 2 Ordinance Extending Moratorium on Medical Marijuana_SBS Edit 1-8-13
	Item 2 Blue Sheet FINAL Blue Sheet on Contracts for Phase II Northern Gateway StalzerOakpointe_SBS Edits 1-8-13
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 2 Attachment 1 Northern Gateway Area Study Map Phase II 01-08-13
	Item 2 Attachment 2 FINAL_Attachment 2 Stalzer Contract for Northern Gateway Phase 2 with Oakpointe 1-8-13_SBS Edit
	Item 2 Attachment 2 Exhibit A-1to Attachment 2 Northern Gateway Phase 2 Scope of Work South Subarea 1-8-13
	Overview
	Methods and Assumptions
	Subarea Plan
	Planned Action EIS
	Annexation Fiscal Analysis and Facilitation of the Annexation Process
	Public Meetings and Presentations


	Item 2 Attachment 2 Exhibit A-2 to Attachment 2 Northern Gateway Phase 2 Budget South Subarea 1-8-13
	Item 2 Attachment 3 FINAL Attachment 3 Northern Gateway Study Phase II Funding Agreement-Oakpointe Holdings 1-8-13
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	AGREEMENT
	RECITALS:
	City of Covington
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	By: Derek Matheson
	Oakpointe Holdings LLC
	By: ______________________________
	COUNTY OF ____________)
	GIVEN my hand and official seal this ______ day of ______________________, 2012.

	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	01-22-13 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, January 22, 2013                                                                         City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




